
VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
AGENDA

Wednesday, July 14, 2021, at 6:00 P.M.

The monthly meeting of the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire Protection District will be held 
in person at Fire Station No. 6, 651 East Vista Way, Vista, CA 92084. 

Members of the public wishing to address the Board may do so under Agenda Item III. 

I. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. APPROVAL OF THIS MEETING’S AGENDA

III. OPEN DISCUSSION WITH THE BOARD 

The Board invites District Residents and others in attendance to address the Board on any 
matter of public concern related to the District’s business. 

IV. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

The Board will review for approval the draft minutes of the District’s special and monthly 
meetings held, respectively, on June 7 and June 9, 2021. 

V. FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORTS

A. District Fire Inspector’s Report. Fire Inspector Jeremy Nichols will provide results of 
activities in June, in addition to proposed activities for July. 

B. Fire Marshalls Report. Deputy Fire Chief Craig Usher will present for the Board’s review a 
list of pending and approved projects for properties located within the District, including the 
pending Mar Vista detachment, and status of the annual weed abatement project in the 
District. 

C. Conclusions From Directors’ Strategic Planning Workshop.  Fire Chief Ned Vander Pol will 
present a summary of the Directors’ Strategic Planning Workshop held on June 7, 2021. 

D. Fire Department Performance Report. Fire Chief Ned Vander Pol will report on 
performance by the City of Vista’s Fire Department during May 2021. 

E. Fire Chief’s Update. Fire Chief Ned Vander Pol will report on other matters of interest to 
the Department and the District.   

VI. OFFICERS’ REPORTS 

A. Accounts Payable. Director Elliott will present for approval the District’s Accounts Payable 
for the month of June 2021. 

B. Portfolio Summary. The Board will review the Treasurer’s Report as of June 30, 2021. 



Vista Fire Protection District  
Agenda, July 14, 2021 

Page 2 of 3

C. Audit FY 2019-20 Approval. Director Elliott will present for the Board’s approval the final 
FY 2019-2020 audit, and request Board approval for the auditors’ proposed engagement 
for the FY 2020-21 audit. 

D. FYE 2021 Preliminary Results And FYE 2022 Budget.  Director Elliott will present the 
Treasurer’s management report on FYE June, 2021, results and the draft budget for 
approval for FY 2021-22, including recommendations for adjustments to staff 
compensation. 

E. Fire Mitigation Fees.  Update continued to August meeting to coincide with County’s 
quarterly report. 

F. Legal Affairs.  District Counsel will report on the status of any pending matters.  

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Fuel Modification. The Subcommittee will report on status of Anchor Point study. 

B. Panoramic Property.  The Subcommittee on Panoramic will propose adoption of a 
resolution declaring the District’s property surplus land and ask the Board for direction on 
further actions. 

VIII. SPECIAL MATTERS DESIGNATED FOR CONSIDERATION 

A. Hearing On Assessments For Weed Abatement.  The Board will hear appeals, if any, from 
assessments incurred by District property owners during the 2020-21 weed abatement 
program, before entering findings on their imposition for collection. 

IX. CONTINUING BUSINESS

A. Emergency Access Roads. Director Ploetz will provide an update on the status of the 
District’s Emergency Access Roads and request authorization for a revised proposal for 
tree trimming. 

B. District General Manager. Continued to August. 

X. NEW BUSINESS

A. Redevelopment Of Station No. 3.  Director Fougner will report on recent developments 
concerning the District’s proposals for modernization of Station No. 3.   

XI. DIRECTORS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

Directors are invited to make announcements and share written communications. 



Vista Fire Protection District  
Agenda, July 14, 2021 

Page 3 of 3

XII. MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT 

Copy of the Agenda and the Board Package of Meeting Materials Are Available On The District 
Web Site: www.vistafireprotectiondistrict.org or by contacting the Office of the Clerk of the Board
955 Vale Terrace Drive, Ste. A, Vista, CA 92084, 760-758-3815   



Draft – Pending Approval At July Meeting 
VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

AGENDA – SPECIAL MEETING
Monday, June 7, 2021

A special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire Protection District was called to order at 
Vista Fire Station No. 5, 2009 South Melrose. Vista, CA by the presiding President, Robert Fougner, 
at 8:30AM. 

Directors Present: Mr. Robert Fougner, President  
Mr. James Elliott, Vice President 
Mr. Daniel Gomez, Director 
Mr. Read Miller, Director 
Mr. John Ploetz, Director 

Directors Absent: None 

Staff Present:   Chief, Ned Vander Pol

I. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. APPROVAL OF THIS MEETING’S AGENDA

On motion duly made and seconded, the Directors unanimously approved the agenda for this 
meeting. 

III. SPECIAL MATTERS DESIGNATED FOR CONSIDERATION 

A. Strategic Workshop. Chief Vander Pol led a Directors’ workshop on evaluating the District’s 
mission and goals.   

IV. MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT 

On motion duly made and seconded the meeting was adjourned at 12:30PM. 



Draft - Pending Approval at July Meeting 
VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

MINUTES of Meeting Held
Wednesday, June 9, 2021

The regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire Protection District 
was called to order at Vista Fire Station No. 5, located at 2009 South Melrose, Vista, by the presiding 
President, Robert Fougner, at 6:00 P.M. 

Directors Present: Mr. Robert Fougner, President  
Mr. James Elliott, Vice President 
Mr. Daniel Gomez, Director 
Mr. Read Miller, Director 
Mr. John Ploetz, Director 

Directors Absent: None 

Staff Present:   Chief, Ned Vander Pol, Deputy Chief, Craig Usher, Fire Inspector, Jeremy 
Nichols, Board Clerk, Christie Ross, Legal Counsel, Matt Bertolucci for 
White & Bright, Jeffrey Golden, Treasurer 

I. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. APPROVAL OF THIS MEETING’S AGENDA

On motion made by Director Elliott and duly seconded by Director Miller, the Directors 
unanimously approved the agenda as published, with amendments to the sequence of 
announced items for discussion.

III. OPEN DISCUSSION WITH THE BOARD 

The Board invited District Residents and others in attendance to address the Board on any 
matter of public concern related to the District’s business. John Connelly, a City of Vista 
employee discussed a pending project affecting city and district boundaries in the vicinity of 
Mar Vista.

IV. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

On a motion made by Director Gomez and duly seconded by Director Elliott, the Minutes for 
the meeting held May 12, 2021, were approved by the Directors as presented.  

V. FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORTS

A. District Fire Inspector’s Report. Fire Inspector, Jeremy Nichols provided results of activities 
in May including parcel inspections for weed abatement, the District’s emergency access 
roads, and proposed activities for June.  

B. Fire Marshall’s Report. Deputy Fire Chief Craig Usher reported no new projects located 
within the District and requested advice on the District’s legal right to place signage within 
roadway easements. 

C. Weed Abatement Assessments.  Department staff reported on the status of weed 
abatement in the District and requested Board action to set public hearing for assessment 



Vista Fire Protection District  
Minutes, June 9, 2021 

Page 2 of 3

of delinquent properties to recover associated costs of nuisance abatement. On a motion 
made by Director Miller and duly seconded by Director Ploetz, all directors approved to 
have a public hearing regarding forced weed abatement on July 14.  

D. Fire Department Performance Report. Fire Chief Ned Vander Pol reported on performance 
by the City of Vista’s Fire Department during May 2021.  

E. Fire Chief’s Update. Fire Chief Ned Vander Pol matters of interest to the Department and 
the District including predictions concerning the severity of this year’s pending fire season.  
The Directors congratulated the Department on renewing their national accreditation.  

F. Fuel Modification. (Brought forward from Item VII A. on the published agenda). Chief 
Vander Pol presented the Staff report recommending retaining Anchor Point for a fuel 
modification study. On a motion made by Director Miller, and duly seconded by Director 
Ploetz, the Board unanimously authorized the President to execute a contract including the 
expenditure of $49,800 for the Anchor Point study.  

G. Grant Programs For Wildfire Safety. (Brought forward from Item X.A on the published 
Agenda) Director Gomez reported on a recent announcement by the California Fire 
Foundation concerning grants for Wildfire Safety and Preparedness.  

VI. OFFICERS’ REPORTS 

A. Accounts Payable. The Secretary of the Board and the treasurer presented for approval 
the District’s Accounts Payable for the month of May 2021. On motion made by Director 
Elliott, and duly seconded by Director Miller, the Directors present approved the payments 
as listed in the amount of $440,072.88 for the month of May.

B. Portfolio Summary/District Investments. The Board reviewed the Treasurer’s Report on the 
District Investments as of May 31, 2021.  

C. Audit Update 2019-20. The Treasurer reported on the status of the FY 2019-2020 audit 
and requested Board approval for execution of the Management Representation Letter to 
the Auditors. On a motion made by Director Ploetz, and duly seconded by Director 
Gomez, the Directors authorize President Fougner to sign the Management 
Representation Letter.  

D. Fire Mitigation Funds.  The Treasurer provided an update regarding discussions with the 
city to develop a standard reporting process for the District’s Fire Mitigation Funds held by 
the City and District. When the reports are updated at the August meeting a confirmation 
letter will be prepared on the District’s behalf which will address funds used by the City in 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2013-15, for the Department’s equipment purchases.  

E. District Communications.  The Treasurer reported on progress in creating a dedicated 
answering service for calls to the District and led a discussion on the necessity for 
establishing a District email account for accessing County reports. 



Vista Fire Protection District  
Minutes, June 9, 2021 

Page 3 of 3

F. Legal Affairs. District Counsel reported on the status of any pending matters.  

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. Fuel Modification. (Reported above.)

B. Panoramic Property.  The Subcommittee on Panoramic reported on costs, procedures, 
and recommendations for the continued ownership or disposition of the District property.  
The Directors requested counsel draft an appropriate resolution declaring the Panoramic 
parcel as surplus property to enable the District to begin exploring interest in its purchase 
by other public entities.  

C. Response Times. This discussion will be included as part of the agenda with the Chief’s 
performance report at future meetings. 

VIII. SPECIAL MATTERS DESIGNATED FOR CONSIDERATION

A. LAFCO Alternate Special District Member. (Discussed below). 

IX. CONTINUING BUSINESS

A. Emergency Access Roads. Director Ploetz provided an update on the status of the 
Emergency Access Roads. On a motion made by Director Miller, and duly seconded by 
Director Gomez, all directors approve an expenditure of up to $5,000 for Director Ploetz to 
hire a tree trimming company to overgrowth on the District’s emergency access easements.  

B. District General Manager. Continue for discussion to August.  

X. NEW BUSINESS

A. Grant Programs For Wildfire Safety. (Reported above.)  

XI. DIRECTORS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

Directors were invited to make announcements and share written communications.  

(Item VIII.A.) Director Fougner received the Directors’ comments and recommendations for 
voting the District’s ballot for an alternate member of LAFCO representing special districts. 

XII. MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT

On a motion made by Director Miller and duly seconded by Director Ploetz, the meeting was 
adjourned at 9:08PM. 



 

 Vista Fire Protection District 
 
Prepared by:   Jeremy Nichols, Fire Inspector / Investigator           
 
Approved by: Ned Vander Pol, Fire Chief            
 
Meeting date:  July 14, 2021 

 
Agenda location:   Continuing Business 
 
District enhanced activities for June 2021 

 
• Annual weed abatement program in progress. 
• Debriefed with CAL-FIRE Defensible Space Inspectors.  
• Inspected a total of 904 parcels and issued 302 hazardous fire area inspection 

notices. 
• Had 31 face-to-face opportunities out in the field and provided 0 Living with 

Wildfire brochures. 
• Received 16 public service requests that resulted in 3 field parcel assessments. 

Of these, 0 hazardous fire area notices were issued. 
• Replaced 0 “Fire Lane” signs. 

 
Planned activities for July 2021 

• Complete inspections for annual weed abatement program. 
• Update District Board on weed abatement progress to date. 
• Continue to monitor for any emergency response map book inconsistencies. 
• Quickly respond to all citizen service requests regarding any hazardous 

conditions. 
• Assess all district emergency roads. 
• Continue to replace faded and/or illegible “Fire Lane” signs.            

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jeremy Nichols 
Fire Inspector / Fire Investigator 
Vista Fire Protection District 



  Vista Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

Prepared by:   Craig Usher, Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal           

 

Approved by: Ned Vander Pol, Fire Chief            

 

Meeting date:  July 14, 2021 
 

Agenda location:   New Business  

 

 

SUBJECT:   Mar Vista Annexation 

 

 

 

STATEMENT ON THE SUBJECT:   

 

On June 9, 2021, the VFPD Board reviewed a presentation by John Conley, Director of 

Community Development for the City of Vista (City), regarding the annexation of 108 parcels 

of land (totaling 143 acres) into the City of Vista.  These parcels are currently receiving fire 

protection services through a contract between the VFPD and the City.  The annexation will 

also provide these parcel owners other city services once the process is complete and 

approved by LAFCO. 

 

At the end of the presentation during comments from the board, a request was made of fire 

staff to present the financial impacts of an annexation of parcels into the City at their next 

regularly scheduled meeting.  An additional request was to provide a graphic representation 

of the parcels prior to and post annexation. 

 

The following fiscal impact was compiled from data obtained through the City’s Graphic 

Information System (GIS), the City Finance department and previous percentile calculations 

provided by the San Diego County Tax Assessors office. The attached exhibit was also 

compiled from the City GIS to provide the requested graphic display. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Vista Fire Protection District 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

With the annexation of 108 land parcels from the VFPD to the City, the estimated net 

financial impact to the district has been calculated to be approximately -$5,279.  This 

calculation is based on a gross property tax collection of $813,329, the VFPD rate of 6.35% 

and a 90% payment to the Vista Fire Department for contractual services. 

 

 

EXHIBITS:    

 

Mar Vista area of influence annexation map depicting a pre-annexation and a post-

annexation graphic depiction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Current Mission Statement: 
To protect life and property with fire and medical emergency services through effective 

prevention, response, and education. 

Options: 
1. To protect life and property with fire, life safety, and community risk reduction services to 
include prevention, response, and education.   

2. To provide high quality customer centered fire, life safety, and community risk reduction 
services.   

3. To protect life and property with fire and medical emergency services through effective 
prevention, response, preparedness and education. 

What is the purpose of the district? 
Local control and a seat at the table. 

Core values (no change) 
Integrity Safety Accountability Effectiveness Respect  

Vision (no change) 
No preventable loss of life or property 
Fiscal security 
Productive, professional relationship with other agencies 
Adequate staff, equipment and facilities to meet public needs 
Regional efficiencies and relationships 
Informed and educated public 

Strategic plan goals 
Work towards securing grants 
Involvement in EOC planning  
Address numbers on all structures 
Enhance community engagement 
Smoke detector and carbon monoxide detector program 
Enhance and support the CERT program 
Grow web presence 



June 2021 Monthly Incident Report 

1. Monthly Activity Report

A. Response Travel Time Report: Total calls of 1,345 of which 1,277 were
counted in the response summary. Calls not counted in the Response Travel
Time Report include:

1. Non-priority responses
2. Cancelled while responding
3. Staged for sheriff.
4. Responding to another jurisdiction for Automatic/Mutual Aid.
5. No 'on scene' MST by responding apparatus.

B. USR 5 year monthly comparison City and District *

2. Response Time Chart

3. Total Response time >10 minutes in Fire District

JS June 2021 Cover 

1



 
 

Monthly Activity Report 
 

June 2021 

 

 
* First unit on scene and emergency calls only-includes automatic aid units 

 
                 Automatic Aid                     Ambulance Transports 
  Current 

  month 
  Year-to- 
     date 

  Current  
  month 

 Year-to- 
    date 

    Given     349      1,953         Vista     657     2,969 
   Received     229      1,213 Other Agencies     110      466  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Response travel time last month (cad) 
 Total City District 
Number of incidents            1,345 887 159 
Number of urgent calls   1,227 809 143 
Average travel time  * 4:25 4:06 5:43 
75th fractal travel time  * 5:15 4:57 7:08 
90th fractal travel time  * 7:07 6:39 9:27 

Response travel time last 12 months (cad) 
          Total          City        District 
Number of incidents 14,515 9,925 1,779 
Number of urgent calls 13,404 9,188 1,599 
Average travel time  * 4:30 4:18 5:38 
75th fractal travel time  * 5:25 5:11 6:49 
90th fractal travel time  * 7:09 6:42 9:08 

2



 
June 2021 

USR 5-year travel time monthly comparison -City  
   Urban Suburban Rural 

Year 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Responses Responses Responses 

2017 7,312 0:05:43 157 0:06:47 282 0:06:28 

2018 7,005 0:05:30 529 0:06:22 66 0:07:19 

                  2019 7,123 0:05:38 529 0:06:19 61 0:07:03 

                  2020 6,840 0:06:07 571 0:06:53 55 0:07:11 

2021   Jan-June 3,670 0:05:39 312 0:06:25 30 0:07:03 

Δ YTD previous year -0:00:28   -0:00:28   -0:00:08 
       

USR 5-year travel time monthly comparison-District 
   Urban Suburban Rural 

Year 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Responses Responses Responses 

2017 1,023 0:06:55 90 0:09:47 327 0:08:30 

2018 826 0:05:51 358 0:07:28 153 0:09:38 

                  2019 804 0:06:01 431 0:07:13 196 0:10:13 

                  2020 736 0:06:21 344 0:07:45 200 0:10:02 

2021 Jan-June 343 0:06:33 220 0:07:51 101 0:10:08 

Δ YTD previous year      0:00:12  0:00:06   0:00:06 
 
 
  

Dispatched Incident volume types June Year to date 
Alarm 47 244 
Fire 151 790 
Medical 1,096 6,359 
Other 51 183 
Total 1,356 7,576 

 

3



5:41

4:33

4:48

5:02

5:16

5:31

5:45

6:00

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Av
er

ag
e 

Tr
av

el
 T

im
e 

(m
:s

s)

N
um

be
r o

f r
es

po
ns

es
 in

 a
ve

ra
ge

Date by Month

Fire District Average Travel Time 12 month

Number of responses in average

Average Response Time

Data retrieved from Tableau Server at NCDJPA    
Note: Incident count used in averages does not include the following:   
Not completed incidents, Mutual Aid Given, Other Aid Given, Cancelled in route,
Not priority, Fill-in Standby, No arrival and Invalid Dates/Times

Response Time = turnout time + travel time

4



June 2021 Response times >10 minutes in Vista Fire District 
Master Incident Number      Date and time                 Street Name                    Response time 

2021-043688                         06/05/2021  04:55:08        Alessandro Tr.                       10:08 

E123 travel time from quarters: 08:24  Vista station three 

 

2021-045589                          06/11/2021   19:33:58      Green Hills Way                     11:10 

E126 from Vista station six.  E123 on a call on Hidden Lake Lane 

 

2021-048109                         06/20/2021   11:29:19      Camino De Las Lomas             10:35   

E122 from S. Santa Fe and Alta Calle 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











Bill To
Vista Fire Protection District
Attn: Jeffrey Golden
955 Vale Terrace  Ste. A
Vista, CA  92084

Invoice

Item Description Quantity Rate Amount
District Hydrants
Serviced

Hydrants# 609-771, 882, 883, 891, 892 & 920 168 27.00 4,536.00

$4,536.00

Date
07/01/21

Little Yellow Buddies Fire Hydrant Services
13615 Fairlane Rd.
Valley Center, CA 92082

Invoice No.
233

P.O. Number Terms Project

Total

Subtotal $4,536.00

Sales Tax $0.00

$4,536.00

07/06/2021













 

 

 
 

 
 

Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Vista, California 



 

 

 
Mission Statement 

 

 

“Our mission is to protect life and property with 
fire and medical emergency services through 

effective prevention, response, and education.” 
 
 
 
 
 

Name Title Elected/Appointed Term Expiration

Read Miller President Elected 11 / 2022

Robert Fougner Vice-President Elected 11 / 2020

James Elliott Director Elected 11 / 2022

Jerry Hill Director Elected 11 / 2020

Wallace Stewart Director Elected 11 / 2020

Vista Fire Protection District

Board of Directors as of June 30, 2020

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Vista Fire Protection District 

955 Vale Terrace Drive, Suite A 
Vista, CA 92084 • (760) 758-3815 

www.vistafireprotectiondistrict.org 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vista Fire Protection District 
 

Annual Financial Report 
 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020	
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-i- 

Vista Fire Protection District 
Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 Page No. 
 

Table of Contents i 
 
Financial Section 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-7 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 Government-wide Financial Statements: 
 Statement of Net Position 8 
 Statement of Activities 9 
  
 Fund Financial Statements: 
 Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Type Funds to the 
 Statement of Net Position 10-11 
 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
 in Fund Balance of Governmental Type Funds to the Statement of 
 Activities 12-13 
 
 Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 14-29 
 
Required Supplementary Information Section 
 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund 30 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 30 
 
Report on Compliance and Internal Controls  
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over  
 Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed  
 in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 31-32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial Section 
	



 

 



 

1 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

Board of Directors 
Vista Fire Protection District 
Vista, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities of the Vista Fire 
Protection District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Vista Fire Protection District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective 
changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 



 

2 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report, continued 

 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7, and the required supplementary information on page 30 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 9, 2021, on 
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. This report can be found on pages 31 and 32. 

 

 

Fedak & Brown LLP 
Cypress, California 
June 9, 2021 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2019 

 

3 

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of the Vista Fire Protection District (District), provides an introduction to the financial statements of the 
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 (with comparative information for fiscal year ended June 
30, 2019). We encourage readers to consider the information presented here with additional information 
that we have furnished in the accompanying basic financial statements and related notes, which follow 
this section. 

The District funds its operations from the property tax revenues assessed and allocated by the County of 
San Diego (County) from District residents. A portion of these tax revenues, which vary according to 
each resident’s property location, are then allocated by the County to the District, net of County 
administrative fees. 

The District uses its portion of the County’s tax revenues to provide fire protection and emergency 
medical services to residents located within the District boundaries. The services are provided by the City 
of Vista’s Fire Department under a twenty-five-year contract executed in 2010 between the District and 
the City of Vista (the City). The cost of services is fixed at a fee equal to 90% of District revenues, 
excluding investment income. Under this contractual fee arrangement, the District is guaranteed in each 
fiscal year to have sufficient revenue to pay for the City’s services. 

Financial Highlights 

 Net position increased 4.26% or $487,490 to $11,921,945. 

 Total revenues increased 3.16% or $122,214 to $3,990,545. 

 Program revenues increased 12.32% or $13,476 to $122,869. 

 General revenues increased 2.89% or $108,738 to $3,867,676. 

 Total expenses increased 6.10% or $201,489 to $3,503,055. 

Required Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities provide information about the activities and performance of the District using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies.   

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and deferred 
outflows of resources and the obligations to creditors (liabilities) and deferred inflows of resources.  It 
also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and 
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  All of the current year’s revenue and 
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities.  This statement measures the success of the 
District’s operations over the past year and can be used to determine the District’s profitability and credit 
worthiness.   

District Activities 

The Vista Fire Protection District is adjacent to the City of Vista in San Diego County. The District is 
organized under the Fire Protection District Law of 1987 (Health and Safety Code Section 13800 et. Seq) 
to provide fire protection services within the Vista Fire Protection District. An elected board of directors 
makes all policy decisions. 

The District is governed by a five-member elected Board of Directors. The Board is responsible for 
establishing policies, guidelines and providing direction for Fire District staff. Board meets on the second 
Wednesday of each month. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2019 

 

4 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities 

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities report information about the District in a way that helps answer this question. These statements 
include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. 
All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is 
received or paid. 

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. Think of the District’s net 
position – the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources – as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating. One will need to consider other non-financial factors; however, such as 
changes in the District’s property tax and assessment base to assess the overall health of the District. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be 
found on pages 14 through 29. 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information and supplementary information concerning the District’s budgetary 
information and compliance. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2019 

 

5 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

2020 2019 Change

Assets:
Current assets $ 11,898,879     11,361,372     537,507          
Non-current assets 204,047          206,080          (2,033)            

Total assets 12,102,926     11,567,452     535,474          

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 180,981          132,997          47,984            

Total liabilities 180,981          132,997          47,984            

Net position: -                 
Net investment in capital assets 204,047          206,080          (2,033)            
Unrestricted 11,717,898     11,228,375     489,523          

Total net position $ 11,921,945     11,434,455     487,490          

Condensed Statement of Net Position

 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $11,921,945 as of June 30, 2020.  

A portion of the District’s net position (1.71% as of June 30, 2020) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(net of accumulated depreciation); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still 
outstanding. The District uses these capital assets for operations; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending.  

At the end of fiscal year 2020, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net position of 
$11,717,898, which may be utilized in future years. (See Note 5) 

2020 2019 Change

Expenses:
Fire protection operations $ 3,503,055       3,301,566       201,489          

Total expenses 3,503,055       3,301,566       201,489          

Program revenues 122,869          109,393          13,476            

General revenues 3,867,676       3,758,938       108,738          

Total revenues 3,990,545       3,868,331       122,214          

     Change in net position 487,490          566,765          (79,275)          

Net position – beginning of period 11,434,455     10,867,690     566,765          

Net position – end of period $ 11,921,945     11,434,455     487,490          

Condensed Statement of Activities

 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2019 

 

6 

Government-wide Financial Analysis, continued 

The statements of activities show how the District’s net position changed during the fiscal year. In fiscal 
year 2020, the District’s net position increased 4.26% or $487,490 to $11,921,945 from ongoing 
operations. 

A closer examination reveals that: 

The District’s total revenues from all sources increased 3.16% or $122,214 to $3,990,545. Program 
revenues increased 12.32% or $13,476, due to an increase of $19,191 in fire mitigation fees, which was 
offset by a decrease of $5,715 in ambulance fees. General revenues increased 2.89% or $108,738, 
primarily due to an increase of $182,195 in property tax revenue, which was offset by decreases of 
$55,120 in unrealized gains on investments and $19,429 in interest earnings. 

The District’s total expenses increased 6.10%, or $201,489 to $3,503,055, due to increases of $175,212 in 
fire protection services, $15,792 in depreciation expense, and $10,485 in general and administrative. 

Governmental Funds Financial Analysis 

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing 
requirements. In particular, the unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the 
government’s net resources for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of June 30, 2020, the District’s General Fund reported a fund balance of $11,717,898. An amount of 
$11,712,830 as of June 30, 2020 constitutes the District’s assigned fund balance, which is available for 
specific future District operations. (see note 6 for further information on the District’s fund balances) 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The final actual expenditures for the General Fund at year-end were $59,158 more than budgeted. The 
variance is principally due to the District under-budgeting fire protection service expenditures. Actual 
revenues were greater than the anticipated budget by $310,545. (See Budgetary Comparison Schedule for 
General Fund under Required Supplementary Information section on page 30) 

Capital Asset Administration 

Changes in capital assets for 2020 were as follows: 

Balance Deletions/ Balance
2019 Additions Transfers 2020

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 40,000            -                 -                 40,000            
Depreciable assets 327,214          28,593            -                 355,807          

Total capital assets 367,214          28,593            -                 395,807          

Accumulated depreciation (161,134)        (30,626)          -                 (191,760)        

Total capital assets, net $ 206,080          (2,033)            -                 204,047          
 

 

At the end of fiscal year 2020, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $204,047 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes access road improvements, 
equipment, and signage. (See Note 4 for further information) 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2019 

 

7 

Conditions Affecting Current Final Position 

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and 
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is 
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on the 
District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time. 

Management is unaware of any other conditions, which could have a significant impact on the District’s 
current financial position, net position or operating results in terms of past, present and future. 

Requests for Information 

The District’s basic financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the 
District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability. If you have any questions about the 
report or need additional information, please contact the Vista Fire Protection District, 955 Vale Terrace 
Drive, Suite A, Vista, California 92084 or (760) 758-3815.  

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

< Page Intentionally Left Blank > 



 
 

 

	
	
	
	

Basic Financial Statements 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2020 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2019 

 

8 

2020 2019

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 11,810,170     11,228,583     
Accrued interest receivable 41,284            87,420            
Accounts receivable – fire mitigation 6,089              22,567            
Property taxes receivable 15,294            17,885            
Due from other governments (note 3) 20,974            3,428              
Prepaid expenses 5,068              1,489              

Total current assets 11,898,879     11,361,372     

Non-current assets:
Capital assets – not being depreciated (note 4) 40,000            40,000            
Capital assets – being depreciated, net (note 4) 164,047          166,080          

Total non-current assets 204,047          206,080          

        Total assets 12,102,926     11,567,452     

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 9,114              7,041              
Accrued salaries and related payables 1,166              815                 
Due to other governments (note 3) 170,701          125,141          

Total current liabilities 180,981          132,997          

        Total liabilities 180,981          132,997          

Net position: (note 5)
Net investment in capital assets 204,047          206,080          
Unrestricted 11,717,898     11,228,375     

        Total net position $ 11,921,945     11,434,455     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Vista Fire Protection District 
Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With comparative amounts for June 30, 2019 

 

9 

2020 2019

Expenses:
Fire protection services $ 3,342,855 3,167,643       
General and administrative 129,573 119,088          
Depreciation 30,627 14,835            

Total expenses 3,503,055       3,301,566       

Program revenues:
Charges for services – fire mitigation fees 86,898 67,707            
Charges for services – ambulance fees 35,971 41,686            

Total program revenues 122,869          109,393          

     Net program expense 3,380,186       3,192,173       

General revenues:
Property taxes 3,567,523 3,385,328       
Interest earnings 222,664 242,093          
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 77,318 132,438          
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 72 (921)               
Other non-operating revenues 99 -                 

Total general revenues 3,867,676       3,758,938       

     Change in net position 487,490          566,765          

Net position – beginning of year 11,434,455     10,867,690     

Net position – end of year $ 11,921,945     11,434,455     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2020 

 

10 

General Reclassifications Statement of
Fund & Eliminations Net Position

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,810,170           -                       11,810,170           
Accrued interest receivable 41,284                  -                       41,284                  
Accounts receivable – fire mitigation 6,089                    -                       6,089                    
Property taxes receivable 15,294                  -                       15,294                  
Due from other governments 20,974                  -                       20,974                  
Prepaid expenses 5,068                    -                       5,068                    

Total current assets 11,898,879           -                       11,898,879           

Non-current assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated -                       40,000                  40,000                  
Capital assets being depreciated, net -                       164,047                164,047                

Total non-current assets -                       204,047                204,047                

Total assets 11,898,879           204,047                12,102,926           

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 9,114                    -                       9,114                    
Accrued salaries and related payables 1,166                    -                       1,166                    
Due to other governments 170,701                -                       170,701                

Total liabilities 180,981                -                       180,981                

Fund balance: (note 6)
Non-spendable 5,068                    (5,068)                  -                       
Assigned 11,712,830           (11,712,830)         -                       

Total fund balance 11,717,898           (11,717,898)         -                       

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 11,898,879           

Net position: (note 5)
Net investment in capital assets $ 204,047                204,047                
Unrestricted 11,717,898           11,717,898           

Total net position $ 11,921,945           11,921,945           

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental  

Type Funds to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2020 

 

11 

Reconciliation:

Fund balance of governmental funds 11,717,898           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and, 
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Capital assets not being depreciated $ 40,000                  
Capital assets being depreciated, net 164,047                

204,047                

Net position of governmental activities $ 11,921,945           

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

12 

General Reclassifications Statement of
Fund & Eliminations Activities

Expenditures/Expenses:
Fire protection services $ 3,342,855       -                     3,342,855       
General and administrative 129,573          -                     129,573          
Depreciation -                     30,627            30,627            

Total expenditures/expenses 3,472,428       30,627            3,503,055       

Program revenues:
Charges for services – fire mitigation fees 86,898            -                     86,898            
Charges for services – ambulance fees 35,971            -                     35,971            

Total program revenues 122,869          -                     122,869          

     Net program expense 3,349,559       30,627            3,380,186       

General revenues:
Property taxes 3,567,523       -                     3,567,523       
Interest earnings 222,664          -                     222,664          
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 77,318            -                     77,318            
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 72                   -                     72                   
Other non-operating revenues 99                   -                     99                   

Total general revenues 3,867,676       -                     3,867,676       

Total revenues 3,990,545       -                     3,990,545       

Excess of revenues over expenditures 518,117          (30,627)          487,490          

     Change in net position 518,117          (30,627)          487,490          

Fund balance/Net position – beginning of year (note 6) 11,199,781     11,434,455     

Fund balance/Net position – end of year $ 11,717,898     11,921,945     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance of Governmental Type Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

13 

Reconciliation:

Net changes in fund balance of total governmental funds $ 518,117          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. 

Depreciation expense (30,627)          

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 487,490          

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

14 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The Vista Fire Protection District is adjacent to the City of Vista in San Diego County.  The District is 
organized under the Fire Protection District Law of 1987 (Health and Safety Code Section 13800 et. Seq) 
to provide fire protection services within the Vista Fire Protection District.  An elected board of directors 
makes all policy decisions. 

The District is governed by a five-member elected Board of Directors. The Board is responsible for 
establishing policies, guidelines and providing direction for Fire District staff. Board meets on the second 
Wednesday of each month. 

B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The basic financial statements of the District are comprised of the following: 

 Government-wide financial statements 
 Fund financial statements 
 Notes to the basic financial statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

These statements are presented on an economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Accordingly, all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of resources, including capital assets, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net 
Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The Statement of 
Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. The types of 
transactions reported as program revenues for the District are to be reported in three categories, if 
applicable: 1) charges for services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions. Charges for services include revenues from customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function. Grant and contributions 
include revenues restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. 
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

These statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances for all major governmental funds. Incorporated into these statements is a schedule to 
reconcile and explain the differences in net position as presented in these statements to the net position 
presented in the Government-wide Financial Statements. The District has presented its General Fund, as 
its major fund, in this statement to meet the qualifications of GASB Statement No. 34. 

Governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and liabilities are included 
on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances present 
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in 
net current assets. Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting 
period in which they become measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. 
Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual 
(generally 60-days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary sources susceptible to accrual 
for the district are property taxes and assessments, interest earnings, investment revenue and operating 
and capital grant revenues. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. However, exceptions to this rule include principal 
and interest on debt, which are recognized when due. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

15 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, continued 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund – is a government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund when necessary. 

C.  Financial Reporting 

The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. 

The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncements in the current year: 

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95 – Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain 
Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to 
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished 
by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first 
became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and 
later. 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position 

1. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported changes in District net position during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

2. Uncertainty 

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and 
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is 
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on 
District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of District’s cash is invested in interest bearing cash accounts.  The District considers 
all highly liquid investments with initial maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

4. Investments and Investment Policy 

The District has adopted an investment policy directing the Treasurer to invest funds in investments 
in accordance with the investment policy. 

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for 
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or 
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

16 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued 

5. Fair Value Measurements 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure 
the fair value of the asset as follows: 

 Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. 

 Level 2 – Valuation is based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These 
inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through 
correlation or market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs 
incorporates observable market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable 
at commonly quoted intervals. 

 Level 3 – Valuation is based on unobservable inputs where assumptions are made based on 
factors such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss severity, and other assumptions 
that are internally generated and cannot be observed in the market. 

6. Property Taxes and Assessments 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two 
installments on December 10 and April 10.  The County of San Diego (County) bills and collects the 
property taxes and remits them to the District in installment during the year.  Tax revenues are 
recognized by the District when received. 

7. Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

8. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded in the government-wide financial statements. Included in capital assets are 
equipment, emergency vehicles, and access road improvements. District policy is to capitalize all 
equipment, emergency vehicles, and access road improvements. Donated assets are recorded at 
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Capital outlay is recorded as expenditures of the 
General Fund and as assets in the government-wide financial statements to the extent the District’s 
capitalization threshold is met. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as follows: 

 Equipment    5 years 
 Emergency vehicles   10 years 
 Access road improvements  20 years 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

17 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued 

9. Net Position 

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows: 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – Investment in capital assets, net of related debt consists 
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and reduced by 
outstanding balances of any debt, or other long-term borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted – Restricted consists of assets that have restrictions placed upon their use by 
external constraints imposed either by creditors (debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
laws and regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through enabling 
legislation. 

 Unrestricted – Unrestricted consists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 
determination of the net investment in capital assets or restricted component of net position.  

10. Fund Balance 

The financial statements and governmental funds report fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to 
honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent. 

 Non-spendable fund balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not 
spendable in form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

 Restricted fund balance – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions enabling legislation. 

 Committed fund balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined 
by formal action of the District’s highest level of decision-making authority (the Board of 
Directors) and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The underlying 
action that imposed the limitation needs to occur no later than the close of the reporting 
period. 

 Assigned fund balance – amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for 
specific purposes. The intent can be established at either the highest level of decision-making, 
or by a body or an official designated for that purpose. This is also the classification for 
residual funds in the District’s special revenue funds.  

 Unassigned fund balance – the residual classification for the District’s general fund that 
includes amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned 
classification is used only if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts 
restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes.  

The Board of Directors establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments 
by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is done through adoption of the budget and subsequent 
budget amendments that occur throughout the year. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, followed by the unrestricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned resources 
as they are needed. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

18 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued 

10. Fund Balance, continued 

Fund Balance Policy 

The District believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient funds be 
retained by the District to provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial 
base, the District needs to maintain an unrestricted fund balance in its funds sufficient to fund cash 
flows of the District and to provide financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures and/or revenue 
shortfalls of an emergency nature. Committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances are considered 
unrestricted. 

The purpose of the District’s fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial resources 
to protect against reducing service levels or raising taxes and fees because of temporary revenue 
shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures. 

11. Budgetary Policies 

The District follows specific procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements.  By state law, the District may adopt a tentative budget no later than July 1, of each year 
and adopt a final budget no later than September 15 of each year.  Budget revisions are adopted as 
required in consideration to unanticipated revenues or expenditures. 

12. Reclassification 

The District has reclassified certain prior year information to conform with current year presentations. 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as 
follows: 

2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,810,170     
 

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consist of the following: 

2020

Petty cash $ 100
Deposits held with financial institutions 534,723
Investments 11,275,347

Total $ 11,810,170     
 

As of June 30, the District’s authorized deposits had the following maturities: 

2020

Deposits held with Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 191 days
Deposits held with San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SDCPIF) 559 days

 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

19 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued 

Authorized Deposits and Investments 

Under provisions of the District’s investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the 
California Government Code, the District may invest funds as listed in Note 1.D.4 to the financial 
statements. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits, or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the 
District’s investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits:  

The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or 
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository 
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged 
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public 
agencies. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 is federally insured per institution and the remaining 
balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held 
in the District’s name. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Code and the District’s investment 
policy contain legal and policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
investments. 

With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in 
marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in 
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).  

Investments at June 30, 2020, consisted of the following: 

Remaining
Maturity

12 Months
Total Or Less

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 896,875 896,875          
San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SDCPIF) 3,185,786 3,185,786       
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 244,667 244,667          
CB&T Trust Wealth Management 6,948,019 6,948,019       

Total $ 11,275,347   11,275,347     

Investment Type

 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The longer the maturity an investment has, the greater its fair value has sensitivity to changes 
in market interest rates. The District’s investment policy follows the Code as it relates to limits on 
investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

20 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization; however, LAIF is not rated.  

Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2020, were as follows: 

Minimum
Legal Exempt or

Total Rating Not Rated

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 896,875 N/A 896,875
San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SDCPIF) 3,185,786 N/A 3,185,786
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 244,667 N/A 244,667
CB&T Trust Wealth Management 6,948,019 N/A 6,948,019

Total $ 11,275,347   11,275,347     

Investment Type

 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one 
issuer as beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no investments in any 
one issuer (other than for U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that 
represented 5% or more of total District’s investment at June 30, 2020. 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair 
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is 
based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

The pool portfolio is invested in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification and liquidity 
requirements set forth by GASB 79 for external investment pools that elect to measure, for financial 
reporting purposes, investments at amortized cost. LAIF does not have any legally binding guarantees of 
share values. LAIF does not impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals. 

San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SDCPIF)  

The San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SDCPIF) is a pooled investment fund program governed 
by the County of San Diego Board of Supervisors and administered by the County of San Diego 
Treasurer and Tax Collector. Investments in SDCPIF are highly liquid as deposits and withdrawals can be 
made at any time without penalty, determined on an amortized cash basis, the same as the fair value of the 
District’s position in the pool. 

JPA Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the California Asset Management Program (CAMP), a California 
Joint Powers Authority that falls under California Code Section 53601(p), which is directed by a Board of 
Trustees that is made up of experienced local government finance directors and treasurers. 

 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

21 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued 

Fair Value Measurements 

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring basis, are as follows: 

Quoted Price Significant
in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 896,875          896,875          -                 -                 
San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SCPIF) 3,185,786       3,185,786       -                 -                 
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 244,667          244,667          -                 -                 
CB&T Trust Wealth Management 6,948,019       6,948,019       -                 -                 

Total $ 11,275,347   11,275,347   -                 -               

Fair Value Measurements

Investment Type

 
(3) Due to/Due From the City of Vista  

The amounts reflected in the financial statements that are due from/due to the City of Vista represent the 
overpayment/underpayment for contracted fire protection services and other fees collected by the City of 
Vista on behalf of the District as follows: 

2020

District fees collected by the City of Vista on
behald of the District for fiscal year 2019/20 $ 35,971            

Less: Payments received through 06/30/20 (14,997)          

Balance due from the City of Vista 20,974            

Fire protection and emergency medical services 3,342,855       
Less: Payments remitted through 06/30/20 (3,172,154)     

Balance due to the City of Vista (170,701)        

Net due to the City of Vista $         (149,727)
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

22 

(4) Capital Assets  

Changes in capital assets for the 2020 fiscal year were as follows: 

Balance Deletions/ Balance
2019 Additions Transfers 2020

Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 40,000            -                 -                 40,000            

   Total non-depreciable assets 40,000            -                 -                 40,000            

Depreciable assets:
Access road improvements 317,298          24,470            -                 341,768          
Equipment 1,541              4,123              -                 5,664              
Signage 8,375              -                 -                 8,375              

   Total depreciable assets 327,214          28,593            -                 355,807          

Accumulated depreciation:
Access road improvements (152,819)        (29,342)          -                 (182,161)        
Equipment (1,232)            (446)               -                 (1,678)            
Signage (7,083)            (838)               -                 (7,921)            

   Total accumulated depreciation (161,134)        (30,626)          -                 (191,760)        

   Total depreciable assets, net 166,080          (2,033)            -                 164,047          

   Total capital assets, net $ 206,080          204,047          

 
Major capital asset additions during the year included $24,470 in access road improvements and $4,123 in 
equipment. 

(5) Net Position 

The calculation of net position at June 30 was as follows: 

2020

Investment in capital assets:
Capital assets, net $ 204,047          

Total investment in capital assets 204,047          

Unrestricted net position:

Non-spendable net position:
Prepaid expenses 5,068              

Total non-spendable net position 5,068              

Spendable net position:
Unrestricted:

Designated for fire protection services 11,712,830     

Total spendable net position 11,712,830     

Total unrestricted net position 11,717,898     

Total net position $ 11,921,945     
 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

23 

(5) Net Position, continued 

Unrestricted Net Position – Operating Reserves 

The District maintains a policy to reserve a portion of unrestricted net position that would allow it to 
continue fire protection service for up to 18 months following a natural disaster. The operating reserve of 
$4.5 million may be adjusted by the Board of Directors from time to time, as necessary to fund both 
operations and capital improvement projects. 

At June 30, reserve balances were as follows: 

2020

Operating reserve for natural disasters $ 4,500,000       

Unreserved portion of unrestricted net position 7,217,898       

Total unrestricted net position $ 11,717,898     

Description

 

(6) Fund Balance 

Fund balances are presented in the following categories: non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned, 
and unassigned (See Note 1.D.10 for a description of these categories).  

A detailed schedule of fund balances and their funding composition at June 30 were as follows: 

2020   
Non-spendable:

Prepaid expenses $ 5,068              

Total non-spendable 5,068              

Assigned:
Designated for fire protection services 11,712,830     

Total assigned 11,712,830     

Total fund balance $ 11,717,898     

Description

 

Fund Balance/Net position – Beginning of the Year Reclassification 

The total fund balance as of June 30, 2019 was $11,449,290; however, according to the June 30, 2019, 
financial statements, that fund balance includes land and depreciable assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation. To conform with current year presentations, the fund balance was reclassified to 
$11,199,781 as of July 1, 2019, to reflect the total fund balance less land and depreciable assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation.  

 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

24 

(7) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to June 
30, 2020, that have effective dates that may impact future financial presentations. 

The following pronouncement implementation dates have been delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84  

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included 
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary 
activities. 

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other 
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial 
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent 
arrangement that meets specific criteria.  

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2018; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 – Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better 
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting 
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements 
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by 18 months. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89 

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End 
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) 
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

25 

(7) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective, 
continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89, continued 

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in 
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5–22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the 
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a 
result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical 
cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. 

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources 
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as 
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. 

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year. 
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90 

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90 – Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the 
consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. 
It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets 
the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment 
should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged 
only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term 
endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity 
interest at fair value. For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, 
a government should report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or 
fund that holds the equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the 
equity method. This Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally 
separate organization results in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate 
organization and, therefore, the government should report that organization as a component unit.  

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity 
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources 
at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component 
unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should 
include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition.  

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2018; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year. 
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the 
provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a 
component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be 
applied on a prospective basis. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

26 

(7) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective, 
continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91 

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of 
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those 
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit 
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting 
of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated 
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.  

This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with 
conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the 
proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities. 
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments. 
During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass 
to the obligors at the end of the arrangements. 

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations, 
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’ 
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities 
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about 
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.  

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 92 

In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92 – Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement 
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of 
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB Statements.  

The requirements of this Statement were as follows: (1) The requirements related to the effective date of 
Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to 
derivative instruments are effective upon issuance; (2) The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of 
assets and those related to the applicability of Statements 73 and 74 are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2020; (3) The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to 
postemployment benefit arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets 
or liabilities are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020; and (4) The requirements 
related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated with AROs in a government 
acquisition are effective for government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one 
year. Earlier application is encouraged and is permitted by topic. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

27 

(7) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective, 
continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93 – Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The 
objective of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting implications that result from 
the replacement of an IBOR.  

This Statement achieves that objective by: (1) Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative 
instruments to the hedge accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference 
rate of the hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment; (2) Clarifying the hedge accounting 
termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace the reference rate; (3) Clarifying that 
the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, affect the assessment of 
whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable; (4) Removing LIBOR as an 
appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate 
swap; (5) Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as 
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate 
swap; (6) Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended; and (7) 
Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease 
contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend. 

The requirements of this Statement were effective as follows: (1) The removal of LIBOR as an 
appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021; and 
(2) All other requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective dates have been postponed by one year. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94 – Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements 
(PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) 
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by 
conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital 
asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some 
PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this 
Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) 
the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to 
provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be 
charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service 
utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement.  

This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment 
arrangements (APAs). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government 
compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or 
operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction.  

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all 
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.  



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

28 

(7) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective, 
continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96 

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for 
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users 
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use 
subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the 
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a 
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for 
SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all 
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97 

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97 – Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 41 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The 
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the 
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not 
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically 
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension 
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans 
other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in 
fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the 
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation 
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through 
those plans.  

The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a 
governing board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the 
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially 
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee 
benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement 
84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts 
that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, respectively, are 
effective immediately. The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial 
reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes 
of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit, 
the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing 
board be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary 
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform, are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged 
and permitted by requirement as specified within this Statement. The Board considered the effective dates 
for the requirements of this Statement in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and in concert with Statement 
No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

29 

(8) Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to other claims and litigation from outside 
parties. After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, 
other than the matter discussed above, will not materially affect its financial condition. 

COVID-19 Pandemic 

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus has spread around the world resulting in business and 
social disruption. The coronavirus was declared a Public Health Emergency of International Concern by 
the World Health Organization on January 30, 2020. The operations and business results of the District 
could potentially be adversely affected by this global pandemic. The extent to which the coronavirus may 
impact business activity or investment results will depend on future developments, which are highly 
uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity 
of the coronavirus and the actions required to contain the coronavirus. The District has not included any 
contingencies in the financial statements specific to this issue. 

(9) Subsequent Events 

Events occurring after June 30, 2020, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial 
statements or disclosure as of June 9, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued. The District is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure in 
the financial statements. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

< Page Intentionally Left Blank > 
 



 
 

 

	
	
	
	

Required Supplementary Information 

	



 
 

 



Vista Fire Protection District 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 
 

30 

Adopted Board Actual Variance
Original Approved Revised Budgetary Positive
Budget Changes Budget Basis (Negative)

Expenditures/Expenses:
Fire protection services $ 3,252,000         -                   3,252,000         3,342,855         90,855              
General and administrative 161,270            -                   161,270            129,573            (31,697)            

Total expenditures/expenses 3,413,270         -                   3,413,270         3,472,428         59,158              

Program revenues:
Charges for services – fire mitigation fees 70,724              -                   70,724              86,898              16,174              
Charges for services – ambulance fees 29,276              -                   29,276              35,971              6,695                

Total program revenues 100,000            -                   100,000            122,869            22,869              

General revenues:
Property taxes 3,400,000         -                   3,400,000         3,567,523         167,523            
Interest earnings 180,000            -                   180,000            222,664            42,664              
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments -                   -                   -                   77,318              77,318              
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets -                   -                   -                   72                     72                     
Other non-operating revenues -                   -                   -                   99                     99                     

Total general revenues 3,580,000         -                   3,580,000         3,867,676         287,676            

Total revenues 3,680,000         -                   3,680,000         3,990,545         310,545            

     Excess of revenues
       over(under) expenditures 266,730            -                   266,730            518,117            251,387            

     Net change in fund balance 266,730            -                   266,730            518,117            251,387            

Fund balance – beginning of year 11,199,781       -                   11,199,781       11,199,781       

Fund balance – end of year $ 11,466,511       -                   11,466,511       11,717,898       

 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

(1) Budgets and Budgetary Data 

The District follows specific procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements.  By state law, the District may adopt a tentative budget no later than July 1, of each year and 
adopt a final budget no later than September 15 of each year.  Budget revisions are adopted as required in 
consideration to unanticipated revenues or expenditures. 

The District presents a comparison of the annual budget to actual results for the General Fund at the 
functional expenditure-type major object level for financial reporting purposes. The budgeted expenditure 
amounts represent the adopted budget. No Board approved supplemental appropriations were made. The 
budgeted revenue amounts represent the adopted budget as originally approved.  

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

< Page Intentionally Left Blank > 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report on Compliance and Internal Controls 



 

 

 
 
 



 

31 

 
 
 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Directors 
Vista Fire Protection District 
Vista, California  

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Vista Fire 
Protection District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprises the District’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated June 9, 2021. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.  

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 



 

32 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

Fedak & Brown LLP 
Cypress, California 
June 9, 2021 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Vista Fire Protection District 
  

Management Report 
  

June 30, 2020 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Vista Fire Protection District 
  

Management Report 

Table of Contents 

 

Item                Page No. 

General Introduction 1 

Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations 1-2 

Appendix: 

Audit/Finance Committee Letter 1-3 

Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entries 4 

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Vista Fire Protection District 
Vista, California 

Dear Members of the Board: 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities and each 
major fund of the Vista Fire Protection District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered 
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of District’s  internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited period described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weakness. 
Given these limitations during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations 

Our comments, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of management, are 
summarized as follows: 

Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Reclassifications 

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted before 
the audit begins. In many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in the normal 
course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with the prior 
year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of the scope 
and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and reclassifications as an 
attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations of having numerous 
adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of the 
adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better 
understanding of the scope of the audit.  

  



Vista Fire Protection District 
Page 2 
 

 

Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations, continued 

Management’s Response 

The District has reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided by 
the auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system. 

* * * * * * * * * * 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of Directors of the 
District.  This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of public 
record. 

We appreciate the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during our examination.  We would be pleased 
to discuss the contents of this letter with you at your convenience.  Please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 
 
 
Fedak & Brown LLP 
Cypress, California 
June 9, 2021 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX 

 
Vista Fire Protection District 

  
Audit/Finance Committee Letter 

  
June 30, 2020 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Vista Fire Protection District 
Vista, California 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the Vista Fire Protection District (District) for the year 
ended June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing 
Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2020.  

We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period. 

Management’s Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Financial Disclosures 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
basic financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the position in the basic financial 
statements were: 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of cash and investments is based on information provided by 
financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of 
cash and investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as 
a whole. 

Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each capitalized 
item’s useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions 
used to develop the capital asset depreciation calculations in determining that they are reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Certain basic financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the basic financial statements were: 

The disclosure of fair value of cash and cash equivalents in Note 2 to the basic financial statements 
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations. 

The disclosure of capital assets, net in Note 4 to the basic financial statements is based on historical 
information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.  



Vista Fire Protection District 
Page 2 
 

 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit processes and testwork; however, we experienced significant delays in performing our procedures 
based on a lack of timely receipt of audit support. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Generally Accepted Auditing Standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 
identified during the audit, except those that are considered trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management as follows:  

There were three (3) audit adjustments and/or reclassification entries made to the original trial balance 
presented to us to begin our audit. These journal entries were prepared by the auditor (see a listing of these 
entries attached on page 4 of this report). 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be significant 
to the basic financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit of the District. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the Management 
Representational Letter to the Auditor dated June 9, 2021. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves the 
application of an accounting principal to the District’s basic financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditor. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Restrictions on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management 
of the District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of public record. 

  



Vista Fire Protection District 
Page 3 
 

 

Conclusion 

We appreciate the cooperation extended to us by Jeff Golden, Treasurer, in the performance of our audit 
testwork. 

We will be pleased to respond to any question you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the opportunity 
to continue to be of service to the District.  

 
 
 
 
 
Fedak & Brown LLP 
Cypress, California 
June 9, 2021 
 
  



Vista Fire Protection District 
Page 4 
 

 

Account Description Debit Credit

109 Investment - LAIF $ 4,384.62
868 Gain/Loss on Valuation Change 4,384.62

Total 4,384.62 4,384.62

113 California Bank & Trust Wealth 72,932.99
868 Gain/Loss on Valuation Change 72,932.99

Total 72,932.99 72,932.99

640 Depreciation 1,074.00
640 Depreciation 29,553.00
151 Accumulated Depreciation 30,627.00

Total $ 30,627.00 30,627.00

Total Adjusting Journal Entries $ 107,944.61 107,944.61

Legend:
AJE Audit Adjusting Journal Entry

Vista Fire Protection District
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2020

AJE - To record depreciation expense in FY20 and correct FY19 depreciation 
expense in the current year.

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1
AJE - To record the LAIF Fair Market Value adjustment as of June 30, 2020.

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
AJE - To correct valuation change amount per Zions Institutional Liquidity 
Management report as of June 30, 2020.

 









































ACTION: 

____________________________ 
Clerk/Secretary 

Department: Fire Item No:

Prepared by: Ned Vander Pol, Fire Chief Meeting Date: June 9, 2021

Approved by: Agenda Location:

SUBJECT:  COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT 2020 WEED ABATEMENT CHARGES

RECOMMENDATION:
1. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-   , declaring its intent to set a public hearing for collection of delinquent 

weed abatement charges. 

2. Set July 14, 2021, as the date of the public hearing to levy assessments on the 2021 property tax roll for 
collection of delinquent 2020 weed abatement charges. 

STATEMENT ON THE SUBJECT:  Ordinance 18 of the Vista Fire Protection District dated June 23, 2003, 
authorizes the Fire Department to declare overgrown weeds and brush a public nuisance if they constitute 
a fire hazard to buildings, or other property.  As required by the ordinance, notices to clear premises that 
were deemed nuisances were sent by regular mail addressed to the property owner or person in charge 
and control of the property at the address shown on the most recently available assessment roll.  1,235 
total parcels were identified in the first wave of review by Fire Prevention staff. 621 of the parcels fell within 
City jurisdiction, with the remaining parcels falling within the jurisdiction of the Vista Fire Protection District. 
Notices were sent to owners in April 2020, with follow-up inspections beginning June 2020.   

The vast majority of parcels have been cleared by the owners or person(s) in charge.  The remaining 
parcels were cleared in October 2020 (‘final wrap’) by a contractor hired by the City.  In November 2020, 
invoices for the contractor’s work and the administrative fees were sent to the property owners.   

The parcels and the amounts to be collected, listed in Exhibit 1, represent the delinquent charges as of 
May 26, 2021.  The total outstanding balance is $5,639.13, which will be included on the Fiscal Year 
2021/22 property tax roll.  The number of parcels and collection amounts may change before the public 
hearing date, if payments are received.  

The two parcels in question are 126 210 1200 located at 1650 Vista Del Mar ($4,221.47) and 183 124 
3000 located at 356 Hannalei Place ($1,417.66). 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount to be recovered via the tax roll is $5,639.13.  Costs recovered will be 
deposited into the Weed and Lot Clearing Fee account (No. 0010034.435160), which is a General Fund 
account.  Revenue collected will cover expenses incurred by the Weed Abatement Program. 

AGENDA
REPORT



MEETING DATE:  May 25, 2021 PAGE 2

SUBJECT:  COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT 2020 WEED ABATEMENT CHARGES  

EXHIBITS:   
1. District Resolution No. 2021-   , declaring its intent to set a public hearing for collection of delinquent 

weed abatement charges 
2. Fiscal Year 2020/21 Report of Proceedings and Account of Costs 
3. Ordinance 18 



CUSTOMER NAME CUSTOMER ADDRESS PAID PROPERTY ADDRESS APN DATE NOTICED INSPECTION DATE DATE PROPERTY NOTICED DATE CLEARED CONTRACTOR AMOUNT ADMIN FEE TOTAL AZTEC INV #

San Jose Equestrian Center LLC8070 Arjons Dr  San Diego   CA   92126 N 1650 Vista Del Mar 126 210 1200 4/15/2020 6/2/2010 7/21/2020 9/18/2020 $3,526.47 $695.00 $4,221.47

S R P S   LP 8665 E. Hartford Dr. #200    Scottsdale  AZ  85255 N 356 Hannalei Place 183 124 3000 4/15/2020 6/4/2020 7/22/2020 9/25/2020 $722.66 $695.00 $1,417.66













RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__ 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, 

APPROVING AND CONFIRMING A REPORT AND ACCOUNT FOR 
ABATEMENT OF WEEDS, SHRUBS, DEAD TREES AND WASTE 

MATTER FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 

  
The Board of Directors of the Vista Fire Protection District does resolve as follows:  

1. Findings. The Board of Directors hereby finds and declares the following:  
 

A. District Ordinance #18 provides that all weeds, dry grasses, dead shrubs, dead trees, 
rubbish or any material growing upon private property are deemed to be a public nuisance and may 
be abated by the Vista Fire Protection District (“District”) at the property owner’s expense if, after 
receipt of notice, the property owner fails to abate the public nuisance.  

B. Section 01.150 authorizes the District after receipt of a report of weed abatement costs to 
impose liens on the properties for the cost of the abatement after a public hearing that are 
delinquent.  

C. On June 9, 2021, the required Report of Proceedings and Account of Costs (Fiscal Year 
2020/21) with respect to the abatement of such items constituting a public nuisance was filed with 
the Clerk of the Board.  

D. Notices in proper form were duly served as required, with respect to all of the parcels 
contained in the Report of Proceedings and Account of Costs, and no appeals as to any affected 
parcel has been filed as provided for in Section 01.090 of the District Ordinance.  

E. The public nuisance formerly existing upon said parcels have not been duly abated and 
the District has incurred costs in accomplishing such abatement.  

F. The required Report of Proceedings and an Account of Costs incurred, which is on file in 
the District Clerk’s Office, has been duly posted and noticed and the hearing on such proceedings 
and costs duly noticed, called, held and conducted on July 14, 2021, pursuant to Section 01.130, 
and an opportunity afforded each owner of land or other interested person whose parcel was 
affected by such report to present a written or oral protest or objection to such report and account at 
said hearing.  

G. The District Board of Directors considered any and all protests and objections to the 
report.  

H. The District Board of Directors, after such hearing duly noticed, held and conducted, finds 
and declares that said Report of Proceedings and Account of Costs is correct and should be 
approved and confirmed in all respects, and the amounts contained therein should be assessed to 
and shall become liens upon the respective parcels of land as they are shown on the last available 
assessment roll.  



 

2. Action.  

A. The District Board of Directors hereby confirms and approves the 2021 Report of 
Proceedings and Account of Costs, a copy of which is on file in the District Clerk’s Office, in all 
respects.  

B. The District Board of Directors does hereby determine that the weeds, grasses, dead 
shrubs and waste matter upon said premises have existed at all times herein and all times have 
constituted a public nuisance requiring abatement as provided in said Ordinance 18.  

C. It is ordered that the amounts and costs of abatement as set forth in the Report of 
Proceedings and Account of Cost, opposite each respective parcel where abatement was required, 
are hereby assessed to and made liens upon the respective lots, premises, or parcels referred to 
therein and such respective lots, premises, or parcels referred to therein and such respective 
amounts to and are made liens upon each respectable parcel of land as such are shown upon the 
last available assessment roll of San Diego County.  

D. The Board Clerk is ordered to file a certified copy of this Resolution, together with the 
Report of Proceedings and Account of Costs attached thereto, with the County Auditor of the 
County of San Diego prior to September 1, 2021. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 
39580 through 39586 inclusive and the California Health and Safety Code 14912, the County 
Auditor shall enter each assessment as set forth in the Report of Proceedings and Account of 
Costs, attached hereto, on the County Tax Roll opposite the parcel of land referred to. The amount 
of the assessment shall be collected at the same time and in the manner of county property taxes; 
and if delinquent, the amount is subject to the same penalties and procedures of foreclosure and 
sale as provided for county property taxes.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Vista Fire Protection District held 
on the 14th day of July 2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN:   
              

Robert Fougner, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                 
Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED as to form:     
 
 
       
FRED PFISTER, Legal Counsel     



JOB LOCATION
29354 Vista Valley Dr., Hardell Ln.

SCOPE OF WORK
Tree removals and clearance pruning along three (3) Fire access roads as discussed per walkthrough.

CUSTOMER INFORMATION
Main Contact Billing Contact
JOHN PLOETZ JOHN PLOETZ
VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  
651 E. VISTA WAY  
VISTA, CA 92084  
760.801.7760  johnploetz@att.net

VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  
651 E. VISTA WAY  
VISTA, CA 92084  
760.801.7760  johnploetz@att.net

Inventory Needed Link Funds to Job # Purchase Order # DIR Project ID #

No

DESCRIPTIONQTY U/M UNIT PRICE TOTAL
112.00 Crew Rental - per man Man Hour $79.80 $8,937.60

$8,937.60GRAND TOTAL:

COMMENTS
Work to be performed by LiUNA Local 89 tree maintenance laborers.

DISCLAIMER: West Coast Arborists, Inc. ensures the quality of work performed, however, we do not ensure the customer's/city's entire tree population from failure. Conditions are often
hidden within trees and below ground. Arborists cannot guarantee that a tree will be healthy or safe under all circumstances. The controlling authority must manage trees and accept
some degree of risk.  Only work identified in the scope of the proposal and in the contract line item is included in our quote or invoice.  All work will be completed in accordance with
ANSI A300 standards.  Price reflects payment under prevailing wage rates under the wage determination: Tree Maintenance Laborer and report of certified payroll to the Department of
Industrial Relations as applicable in accordance with state labor laws.

CA Contractors License 366764 Federal Tax ID: 95-3250682 CA DIR Registration 1000000956

ISAAC ONTIVEROS 07/01/21

ESTIMATED BY TITLE DATE

DATETITLEACCEPTED BY

AREA MANAGER

WEST COAST ARBORISTS, INC.
8163 Commercial Street  La Mesa, CA 91942    
858.566.4204 Phone  858.566.4098 Fax  WCAINC.COM

Proposal
# 69927

PROPOSAL FOR TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICESPROPOSAL FOR TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

Printed on: 7/1/2021 3:03:43 PM Page 1 of 1


	Agenda
	Minutes Special Meeting June 7, 2021
	Minutes Meeting June 9, 2021
	Fire Inspector's Report
	Deputy Chief's Report On Mar Vista Detachment
	Conclusions From Strategic Planning Workshop
	Department Performance Report
	Accounts Payable
	City of Vistra Invoice
	LYB Invoice Services #233
	VFPDJune2021_1
	VFPDJune2021_2
	Payroll

	Portfolio Summary
	Independent Annual Financial Report 2019-20
	Auditors' Management Report 2020
	Audit Engagement For FY 2020-21
	Draft District Budget 2021-22 
	Resolution Re Panoramic Property
	Staff Report On Weed Abatement Collection
	Schedule of Lots For Abatement
	District Ordinance
	Proposed Resolution For Imposition Of Fines

	Proposal By West Coast Arborists

